
Page 1

AGENDA 
Meeting: CABINET CAPITAL ASSETS COMMITTEE
Place: The Kennet Room - County Hall, Trowbridge BA14 8JN
Date: Tuesday 19 July 2016
Time: 11.00 am or on the rising of Cabinet, whichever is the later

Please direct any enquiries on this Agenda to Will Oulton, of Democratic Services, 
County Hall, Bythesea Road, Trowbridge, direct line 01225 713935 or email 
william.oulton@wiltshire.gov.uk

Press enquiries to Communications on direct lines (01225)713114/713115.

This Agenda and all the documents referred to within it are available on the Council’s 
website at www.wiltshire.gov.uk 

Membership:

Cllr Fleur de Rhé-
Philipe

Cabinet Member for Economic Development, Skills, 
Strategic Transport and Strategic Property

Cllr Baroness Scott of 
Bybrook OBE

Leader of the Council

Cllr Toby Sturgis Cabinet Member for Strategic Planning, Development 
Management, Strategic Housing, Operational Property and 
Waste

Cllr John Thomson Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for Communities, 
Campuses, Area Boards and Broadband

Cllr Dick Tonge Cabinet Member for Finance

Substitutes:

Cllr Laura Mayes Cabinet Member for Children’s Services
Cllr Jonathon Seed Cabinet Member for Housing, Leisure, Libraries and 

Flooding
Cllr Stuart Wheeler Cabinet Member for Hubs, Heritage and Arts, Governance 

and Support Services
Cllr Philip Whitehead Cabinet Member for Highways and Transport
Cllr Jerry Wickham Cabinet Member for Health (including Public Health) and 

Adult Social Care

http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/


Page 2

RECORDING AND BROADCASTING NOTIFICATION

Wiltshire Council may record this meeting for live and/or subsequent broadcast on the 
Council’s website at http://www.wiltshire.public-i.tv  At the start of the meeting, the 
Chairman will confirm if all or part of the meeting is being recorded. The images and 
sound recordings may also be used for training purposes within the Council.

By entering the meeting room you are consenting to being recorded and to the use of 
those images and recordings for broadcasting and/or training purposes.

The meeting may also be recorded by the press or members of the public.
 
Any person or organisation choosing to film, record or broadcast any meeting of the 
Council, its Cabinet or committees is responsible for any claims or other liability resulting 
from them so doing and by choosing to film, record or broadcast proceedings they 
accept that they are required to indemnify the Council, its members and officers in 
relation to any such claims or liabilities.

Details of the Council’s Guidance on the Recording and Webcasting of Meetings is 
available on the Council’s website along with this agenda and available on request.

If you have any queries please contact Democratic Services using the contact details 
above.

http://www.wiltshire.public-i.tv/


Page 3

AGENDA

Part I

Items to be considered while the meeting is open to the public

Key Decisions:   Matters defined as 'Key' Decisions and included in the 
Council’s Forward Work Plan are shown as 

1  Apologies and Substitutions 

2  Minutes of the previous meeting (Pages 5 - 8)

To confirm and sign as a correct record the minutes of the Cabinet (Capital 
Assets) Committee meeting held on 17 May 2016.

3  Leader's Announcements 

4  Declarations of interest 

To receive any declarations of disclosable interests or dispensations granted by 
the Standards Committee.

5  Public Participation and Questions from Councillors 

The Council welcomes contributions from members of the public. This meeting 
is open to the public , who may ask a question or make a statement. Questions 
can also be asked by members of the Council. Written notice of questions or 
statements should be given to Will Oulton of Democratic Services by 12.00 noon 
on Wednesday 13 July 2016. Anyone wishing to ask a question or make a 
statement should contact the officer named above.

6  ICT Capital Funding Bid (Pages 9 - 22)

 Report by Dr Carlton Brand, Corporate Director.

7  Urgent items 

Any other items of business that the Leader agrees to consider as a matter of 
urgency.



Page 4

8  Exclusion of the Press and Public 

This is to give further notice in accordance with paragraph 5 (4) and 5 (5) of the 
Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to 
Information) (England) Regulations 2012 of the intention to take the following 
item in private.

To consider passing the following resolution:

To agree that in accordance with Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 
1972 to exclude the public from the meeting for the business specified in Item 
Number 9 because it is likely that if members of the public were present there 
would be disclosure to them of exempt information as defined in  paragraph 3 of 
Part I of Schedule 12A to the Act and the public interest in withholding the 
information outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information to the 
public.

Reason for taking item in private:
Paragraph 3 - information relating to the financial or business affairs of any 
particular person (including the authority holding that information).

Part II

Items during consideration of which it is recommended that the public
should be excluded because of the likelihood that exempt

information would be disclosed

9  ICT Capital Fund (Part ii) (Pages 23 - 32)

Our vision is to create stronger and more resilient communities. Our priorities are: To protect 
those who are most vulnerable; to boost the local economy - creating and safeguarding jobs; 
and to support and empower communities to do more themselves.



CABINET CAPITAL ASSETS COMMITTEE

DRAFT MINUTES of a MEETING held in THE KENNET ROOM - COUNTY HALL, 
TROWBRIDGE BA14 8JN on Tuesday, 17 May 2016.

Cllr Fleur de Rhé-
Philipe

Cabinet Member for Economic Development, Skills, 
Strategic Transport and Strategic Property

Cllr Baroness Scott of B
ybrook OBE

Leader of the Council

Cllr Toby Sturgis Cabinet Member for Strategic Planning, Development 
Management, Strategic Housing, Operational Property and 
Waste

Cllr John Thomson Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for Communities, 
Campuses, Area Boards and Broadband

Cllr Dick Tonge Cabinet Member for Finance

Key Decisions   Matters defined as 'Key' Decisions and included in the Council’s Forward 
Work Plan are shown as 

26 Apologies and Substitutions

All members were present..

27 Minutes of the previous meeting

The minutes of the meeting held on the 15 March 2016 were presented and
considered.

Resolved

To approve as a correct record and sign the minutes of the meeting held
on the 15 March 2016

28 Leader's Announcements

There were no leaders announcements.

29 Declarations of interest

Councillor Fleur de Rhé-Philipe declared a non-prejudicial interest in agenda item 
6 as a member of the Canal Trust.

30 Public Participation and Questions from Councillors

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



It was noted that no requests for public participation had been received, and 
that there were no members of the public present.

31 Transfer of land to the Wiltshire and Berkshire Canal Trust.

Councillor Toby Sturgis, Cabinet Member for Operational Property, presented a 
report which sought authorisation for the transfer, by way of long lease or 
freehold (as appropriate), of 6 areas of land in Wiltshire to the Wilts & Berks 
Canal Trust (WBCT) to enable it to fulfil its aim of re-creating a navigable canal 
route linking the Kennet & Avon Canal at Semington.

Resolved

1. That Committee is asked to support the Wilts & Berks Canal Trust 
by agreeing to the principle of transferring the assets listed in this 
report.

2. That Committee delegates authority to the Associate Director for 
People & Business, the Associate Director for Finance and the 
Associate Director for legal and governance in consultation with 
Cabinet Member for Economic Development, Skills, Strategic 
Transport and Strategic Property, Cllr Fleur de Rhé-Philipe the 
basis of transfer (freehold or long leasehold) and the detailed terms 
of each transfer/lease.

3. That Committee confirms at this time that its intentions are limited 
to transferring the assets only and they do not extend to seeking 
compulsory purchase powers on behalf of the Wilts & Berks Canal 
Trust.

Reason for Decision:

To support the aspirations of the Council’s business plan, the Wilts & Berks 
Canal Trust’s aims, the Council’s Core strategy and to reduce the Council’s 
liabilities associated with those pieces of land already restored.

32 Urgent items

There were no urgent items.

(Duration of meeting:  11.30  - 11.45 am)

These decisions were published on the 19 May 2016 and will come into force on 27 
May 2016

Page 6



The Officer who has produced these minutes is Will Oulton, of Democratic Services, 
direct line 01225 713935 or e-mail william.oulton@wiltshire.gov.uk  
Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8



Wiltshire Council

Cabinet Capital Assets Committee

19 July 2016

Subject: ICT Capital Funding Bid

Cabinet member: Councillor Tonge, Finance and ICT

Key Decision: Yes 

Executive Summary

Wiltshire's Children's Services provide a range of services to support and 
safeguard children and families. Case management systems facilitate this by 
supporting front line workers in a wide range of services, providing a recording 
base, workflow tools and functionality, enabling reporting for local use and 
national returns.

Most of the current systems have been used for many years and do not fully 
support the current or future improved ways of working.

Wiltshire's Children's Services currently use 5 case management systems with 
contracts due to expire in the next 3 years.  Following current EU rules, the 
Council is required to go to market to identify and procure the most suitable 
case management systems via a compliant procurement process. The aim will 
be to cover all requirements for Children's Services with a minimum number of 
suppliers.  

This bid is for the funding of the activities in preparation for the replacement, the 
purchase and implementation of the new applications, ongoing maintenance 
and all the activities required to support this. 

Proposal(s)

To release from the ICT capital budget, an additional amount, as specified in the 
part II appendix, over the next 3 years to research, procure and implement 
replacement Children’s Services support solutions.

It is proposed that the revenue element is funded from either grant fund bids or if 
that is unsuccessful the Children’s Service. When the procurement process is 
complete and the providers selected, a full evaluation will be carried out, to 
assess the requirements around staffing levels in both Children’s Social Care 
and ICT.  Future staffing levels and savings will depend on the future system 
selected.

Page 9

Agenda Item 6



To delegate powers to enter into resulting contract(s) for these solutions, to the 
Associate Director, People and Business Services in conjunction with the Section 
151 Officer.

Reason for Proposal

Systems that support Children’s Services need to be fit for purpose and give the 
opportunity to streamline working practices and keep pace with change.  The 
current systems are limited in what they can offer to the changing needs of the 
council and Children’s Services. The renewal of contracts offer an opportunity to 
enable the aims of the council and the Children’s Services to offer an improved 
and mobile solution as well as reducing existing IT solutions and support and 
maintenance costs.

Dr Carlton Brand
Corporate Director

Page 10



Wiltshire Council

Cabinet Capital Assets Committee

19 July 2016

Subject:  ICT Capital Funding Bid

Cabinet member: Councillor Tonge, Finance and ICT

Key Decision: Yes 

1.  Purpose of Report

1.1 The purpose of the report is to secure capital funding for the re-procurement 
and implementation of case management systems in Children’s Services.

2 Relevance to the Council’s Business Plan

2.1 Children’s Services links most closely to the Council’s business plan 
outcomes:
 Wiltshire has inclusive communities where everyone can achieve their 

potential
 People are as protected from harm as possible and feel safe

2.2 Children’s Services are embracing change and adopting a transformational 
and innovative approach to provision of their services and ways of working to 
satisfy local and national requirements. Any new system(s) will be in line with 
local authority legislative requirements and Wiltshire goals to:
 Reduce the amount and cost of paper transaction and storage
 Reduce the risks of data loss by reducing paper transactions and 

duplicated transactions
 Enabling secure inter-organisational access to and sharing of data
 Move towards mobile working and more efficient ways of working
 Review out of date practices and processes to stream-line existing work 

patterns in line with the new ways of working within a transformed council 
setting

 Meeting government’s statutory requirements and good practice for 
Children’s Services for educational support, early intervention and social 
care.

 Improving Council outcomes for children and young people by meeting the 
objectives of:

o All children and young people make the best possible start in life. 
o All children and young people are safeguarded from harm. 
o More children and young people are able to remain with their 

families when safe to do so. 
o More vulnerable children and young people are able to achieve 

outcomes and progress in line with their peers. 
o More children and young people live above the poverty line. 

Page 11



o More children and young people benefit from a healthy lifestyle. 
o All children and young people are equipped with skills, knowledge, 

opportunities and attitudes to make a successful transition to 
adulthood. 

2.3 The ICT Strategy has been considered and the consolidation of systems will 
embrace ICT change requirements:
 Move from managing services on premise to a cloud solution (whether 

public or private)
 To enable the use of mobile solutions to enable access to data and 

systems locally and provide a means for local decisions to be made when 
out in the field

 Reduction in complexity and number of ICT systems
 Enable better use of ICT systems to reduce duplication
 Enable better use and access to data to support business decisions 

(enable improved data consolidation into one place for ease of use 
 Enable business units and individuals to self-manage where appropriate 

(eg access management, workflow implementation etc)
A consolidated digital system would link into the ICT Strategy and support the 
digital strategy of the council.

  
3 Main Considerations for the Council

3.1 The importance and value of information cannot be under estimated. We have 
high expectations of the quality and availability of information in order to make 
best use of its information assets and take advantage of the opportunities that 
new technologies bring. The Council needs good case management systems 
to record detail at case level and enable effective needs assessment, good 
planning and productivity; to monitor and evaluate outcomes for children and 
young people in Wiltshire.

3.2 The need for good systems is further evidenced through national inquiries 
such as Laming and Bichard related to high profile cases where systems and 
information sharing have impacted adversely on safeguarding.  The Munro 
report also recommends the streamlining of recording systems.

3.3 High quality, up to date and accurate child level information is vital to provide 
a history of need, planning, interventions and review, giving an accurate 
record that can be used by staff and managers, in some cases being 
presented in court. 

3.4 Some systems are public facing and used for allocations and funding, for 
example the allocation of school places and the funding of early years free 
entitlement child care places, and their robust operation is vital to the 
reputation of the council.

3.5 Child level data is submitted to the DFE through statutory monthly, quarterly 
and annual returns. These returns are large and complex. The results that the 
DFE aggregates from the data are ranked and benchmarked and used by the 
DFE and Ofsted to evaluate the work of the local authority.  

Page 12



3.6 Much of the format and coverage of the recording and functionality of the case 
management systems is dictated by statutory guidance and statutory returns 
however, the way that a system is shaped and configured, and the way that a 
practitioner uses it, affects the efficiency of that practitioner and success of the 
service.

3.7 Systems need to enable effective management oversight so that consistency, 
performance and impact can be monitored at service, team and individual 
worker/case level.

3.8 It is the intention of Children’s Services to procure “fit for purpose” case 
management solutions which support both current and future ways of working, 
and offer value for money. The preferred option would be to look for a single 
provider but pre market consultation revealed this is currently unlikely as no 
single supplier appears to be in a position to deliver the full specification 
needed at a high enough “tried and tested” standard.

3.9 This approach is the only option which will satisfy procurement requirements 
and avoid the risk of fines from the EU and damages being paid to software 
companies who are expecting Wiltshire Council to follow a compliant route to 
market for Children’s Services case management systems. However, it may 
be that some of the existing suppliers are awarded the contract(s) and that the 
resources required can be reduced.  Other options considered would not 
satisfy procurement requirements, achieve sufficient improvements and would 
still require significant investment, see the options section of this report..

4 Background

4.1 There are 114,000 children and young people aged 0-19 in Wiltshire, many of 
which are supported through the Council’s Children’s Services.  Services 
support child care free entitlement for funding of 2, 3 and 4 year olds and 
arrangements for admissions to schools which impact nearly all children. 
66,000 of those children are in the 237 schools in the County. Specific support 
is provided for early help, targeted support in school, special education needs 
and disability, youth offending and targeting young people not in education, 
training or employment. At any one time 3,000 children and young people are 
being supported by Children’s social care, with around 400 of those in the 
Council’s care. 

4.2 The case management systems we use need to not only assist approx. 1500 
practitioners to function efficiently (supporting referral, assessment, planning, 
direct work and review) but also be public facing, ideally through portals 
allowing appropriate access for clients to see their records and contribute to 
them, and other agencies to interact with us regarding cases.

4.3 Current Systems:

System Service Coverage
CACI - Impulse School Admissions, Early Years payments and directory, Social 

Inclusion Common Assessment Form register and Single Agency 
Referral Form records, used by some of Early Help teams, Sensory 
Module, School census and Pupil Attainment repository holding 
details of all school children.

Page 13



OLM - 
Carefirst

Daisy 
Carestore

Children’s Social Care, including Fostering and Adoption recording.  
It is also the supplier for Adults Social Care in a separate database.

Integrated electronic document management system (procured 
through OLM)

CareerVision - 
Integrated 
Youth 
Services 
System (IYSS)

Youth Offending, Not in Education, Employment or Training / 
Raising Participation Age tracking, Substance Misuse.

BSL – Bright Special Educational Needs, Education and Health Care Plans.

Capita - eStart Used by Wiltshire’s Children’s Centres to register all families using 
the centres and their services. 

Additional 
Spreadsheets

A host of spreadsheets are held to cope with deficits in the current 
case management systems – mainly but not exclusively around 
tracking workflow.

4.4 Impulse, Carefirst and Bright have all been in place for 15 years, e-start since 
2007 and IYSS was procured through a Major Exemption agreement in 2012.

4.5 The contract for Impulse has recently been extended till August 2017; 
Carefirst is due for renewal in 2018; IYSS is due for renewal July 2017; Bright 
and eStart both have open contracts.

4.6 Some of the current systems are dated and time consuming to use compared 
to more recently developed systems. The landscape of Children’s Services 
has changed significantly and some of the systems no longer support our 
work well or enable us to have an overview of the child/family.

4.7 It takes considerable staff time across a number of teams to maintain, adapt 
and upgrade these systems.  There are workarounds in place to overcome 
shortfalls in the systems which are not efficient around duplication of effort 
and bring extra risk.

4.8 Support and maintenance costs of these systems are high compared to others 
that are available on the market.

4.9 Drivers for Change include:

 Improved outcomes for children and young people – better tracking of 
child’s journey, better evaluation of interventions, workers spending more 
direct time with families rather than recording would all improve the 
standard and quality of work.  There is also a need to improve the quality of 
information shared with clients both for current cases and Data Subject 
Access Requests.

 Improved worker experience – eg more intuitive operation, able to see 
holistic view of the child/family and who is working with them, alerts, task 
reminders, family and individuals recording, see journey of the child, 
enabling mobile/flexible working and more efficient working.  This may 
improve practitioner recruitment and retention. 

Page 14



 Improved manager experience – eg dashboards to see service, team and 
individual’s performance and workflow, ease of allocation/re-allocation of 
cases, self-service reporting.

 Improved performance management – instant availability of performance 
indicators with drill down ability to individual cases, automated central 
government returns, visibility of key metrics which would aid budget 
decisions.

 Improved financial management – for example clarity of packages of care, 
enabling monitoring and forecasting and raising the awareness of the cost 
of client’s support and choices made.

 Keeping up with ways of working - nothing stands still. National and local 
expectations change and so do council structures and service delivery 
requirements. ICT technology and functionality continues to develop and 
enable improved ways of working. 

 Meet the minimum expectations of regulators – expectations are that local 
authorities have systems that support current ways of working for frontline 
professionals, give good visibility of the child’s journey and facilitate good 
decision making and evaluation of outcomes.

 Improved supplier support and maintenance – this has been variable and 
needs to be more timely, appropriate and accurate.  Issues with current 
delivery have impacted on the Application Team in ICT and the business 
within Children’s Services due to problematic upgrades and installations. 

 Value for money – whilst the initial cost of implementing fit for purpose 
systems would be high, there could be savings through reducing the 
numbers of suppliers/systems used – both through annual support and 
maintenance charges and from less IT infrastructure costs.  Better 
functionality could be achieved for workers and managers, and better data 
quality and productivity would be expected. Revenue payback will be 
spread over a number of years.

 Further savings will be made from staff costs with improvement in ways of 
working resulting from the procurement of new systems partnered with the 
proposed workforce changes in Children’s Social Care.

 Cost avoidance of the indirect costs such as future paper storage, 
insurance, reduced risk around paper storage.

4.10 Consolidating systems to an optimum number would streamline processes 
towards a much leaner way of working and reduce the time required by staff 
to access information from different systems and across other service teams. 
Soft market testing last summer suggested that procurement would be 
unlikely to yield a single supplier with fully integrated systems with a proven 
track record. However, reducing from 5 to 2 or 3 suppliers appears to be a 
possibility and suppliers were offering solutions to create a single view.

Page 15



4.11 Connectivity through portal approaches would allow appropriate role based 
access to both professionals and clients alike, allowing appropriate 
information sharing and exchange. Some of the suppliers are offering portal 
solutions.

4.12 Mobile Working and capturing information externally to the office environment 
is a key requirement for future systems. This will allow staff to access and 
update information from locations independent of the Wiltshire Hubs and in 
the client’s home with less time wasted in travelling to an office base. 

4.13 New more flexible systems will improve social worker recruitment and 
retention.

4.14 Systems need to be sufficiently up to date to meet the requirements of new 
inter county arrangements e.g. Child Sexual Exploitation; Adoption West

4.15 Once funding is secured it is proposed to go out to the market in the Autumn 
to start to procure of appropriate systems to match the requirements. Lead in 
times for implementation of the different functional areas vary e.g. for 
children’s social care implementation is estimated to take a year once 
contracts have been signed.  

5 Adult Care

5.1 It must be noted that this bid is for Children’s Services only as there is a 
separate work stream looking into the future requirements for Carefirst for 
Adult Social Care. As there are potential efficiencies in using the same case 
management solution provider for both Children’s and Adult’s Services, the 
intention is to include a contractual option for Adult Services as part of the 
procurement, subject to securing any further funding to exercise that option in 
the future.

5.2 As stated in the risk section if Adults do not also replace CareFirst, residual 
support costs with OLM (the supplier) will reduce the scope for savings as two 
social care systems will then be in use.  This is mitigated by including an 
option in the procurement for Adults to exercise enabling them to adopt the 
solution.  If Adults remain on CareFirst we will negotiate with OLM to review 
and reduce the support and maintenance costs for Adults.

6 Overview & Scrutiny Engagement

6.1 Children’s Select Committee have noted the challenges of some of the 
existing case management systems and have asked for an update of the 
progress of the proposed programme of work at their July meeting. During 
discussion, they acknowledged the need for robust systems to support 
practitioners and managers, and the considerable effort that would be 
required if systems were changed.

7 Safeguarding Implications

Page 16



7.1 The safeguarding of children and young people is affected by the quality of 
case management systems and the sharing of information between systems. 
This has been borne out by national enquiries such as Laming and Bichard 
which related to high profile cases and have pinpointed the need for better 
systems to improve information sharing and therefore safeguarding.

 
8 Public Health Implications

8.1 Public Health endorses the move towards integrating and improving 
management systems in Children’s Services, recognising the need to improve 
information sharing, safeguarding and service delivery. 

9 Procurement Implications

9.1 Procurement rules and contract renewals - EU Regulations implemented into 
UK law under the Public Contracts Regulations 2015, require above threshold 
spending to be advertised and subject to competition wherever possible, 
unless there is a alternative legally compliant route to market such as a 
framework.
 

9.2 The procurement project is being supported by a specialist consultant, who in 
consultation with and supported by the Strategic Procurement Hub and 
Programme Office has developed a procurement options paper that is in a 
Part II appendix to this report. This lays out options and a recommendation(s) 
for the routes to market that can be used to deliver the requirement. 

10 Equalities Impact of the Proposal (detailing conclusions identified from 
Equality Analysis, sections 4 and 5)

10.1 There is a high implication in the development and implementation of this 
programme for the delivery and promotion of fair, non-discriminatory and 
equitable access to services. 

10.2 The programme aims to:
 adopt, promote and implement a more customer-focused approach;
 promote equality of opportunity in both access to service and service 

development;
 eliminate any potential discrimination in access to services;
 promote and encourage active citizenship of all in our diverse communities;
 promote involvement of diverse communities in developing services 

access.

11 Environmental and Climate Change Considerations 

11.1 Reduced travelling and associated carbon emissions as a result of enabling 
mobile working through the new ICT systems purchased.

12 Risk Assessment

13 Risks that may arise if the proposed decision and related work is not 
taken

Page 17



 Transformational ways of working not achieved.
 Legally not compliant under procurement law.
 Potential procurement challenge/fines. External challenge and fines could 

result if contracts are extended and arrangements simply rolled forward.  
Reputational and political risk is also linked to this.

 Increased support and maintenance annual costs. There would be no 
guarantee that current or reduced costs for annual support and 
maintenance could be agreed and contracted.

 At some point, there will be pressure from CACI and OLM to upgrade to 
new generation systems (ChildView and Eclipse) as old systems are 
decommissioned.

 Potential to be left with systems that are not supported.
 No new functionality negates practice improvement or efficiencies. 

Continued staff frustration. Current systems continue not to provide up to 
date look and feel, workflow or dashboard type functionality or detailed self-
service reporting that you would expect from a modern system.  No 
improvements in performance management or analysis of spend.  No 
decrease in bureaucracy for front line staff and thereby no gain in the 
reduction of safeguarding risks to individuals or the organisation.

 Significant staff time and costs required to keep systems running and 
maintain/develop workarounds.

 Expenditure creep on current contracts ie time delays lead to contract 
extension and cost outside of current contractual arrangements.

 Experienced staff lost to other authorities with easier to use IT systems.

14 Risks that may arise if the proposed decision is taken and actions that 
will be taken to manage these risks

 Insufficient resource dedicated to the project – prioritising this project over 
others in ICT and Children’s Services and resourcing appropriately

 Estimated costs prove to be insufficient – robust negotiation with suppliers 
to ensure the best possible deal for Wiltshire

 Poor implementation results in less than optimum systems – ensure the 
business requirements are well written with engagement from all team 
across Children’s Service and backfill of necessary posts.

  Overall value not optimised – If Adults do not also replace CareFirst, 
residual support costs with OLM (the supplier) will reduce the scope for 
savings as two social care systems will then be in use.  This is mitigated by 
including an option in the procurement for Adults to exercise enabling them 
to adopt the solution.  If Adults remain on CareFirst we will negotiate with 
OLM to review and reduce the support and maintenance costs for Adults.

 Limited responses from suppliers to procurement process resulting in 
limited choice - ensure good communication with suppliers and 
employment of experienced part-time specialist procurement consultant to 
undertake the tender exercise.

15 Financial Implications

Page 18



15.1 The capital programme approved in February by council included an 
estimate for this project as detailed in the Part II appendix. This report 
requests this money to be released. The overall budget will be reviewed 
during the tender process to identify savings and efficiencies to help 
mitigate against additional expenditure. 

15.2 Detailed costings of the preferred option have been prepared based on 
discussions with other local authorities and from suppliers at the pre-market 
consultation stage however, exact costs will not be known at this stage of 
the procurement process. The costings are shown in Part II. The project 
requires significant capital investment for the Council. Initial costings outline 
an investment and payback period with regard to revenue expenditure. 

15.3 Medium to long term savings are anticipated in overall total ICT support 
costs as well as reductions in Children’s Services staffing levels which will 
be jointly resultant of the proposed data management systems and ways of 
working and new staffing structures in place to best manage risk and 
protect vulnerable children and families.  Whilst there are one off costs 
which include training and the cost of borrowing, the current annual support 
and maintenance costs are greater than those anticipated with the new 
systems.  This means an estimated payback period of 6 years after the 
investment period.  In addition to this and once the procurement process is 
complete and preferred systems selected, a full evaluation of staffing 
requirements together with saved future paper storage can be carried out, 
a very early estimate is included in the part II paper.

16 Legal Implications

16.1 The proposed option will allow the council to comply with its obligations 
under UK contract regulations by undertaking a fresh procurement 
exercise. There is always the risk that an unsuccessful economic operator 
might challenge some aspect of the procurement process but this risk can 
be mitigated by the expertise of the Strategic Procurement Hub officers in 
their planning and operation of the procurement exercise. 

16.2 The alternative options considered in this report are:
 the ‘minimal change’ approach; and,
 the ‘No new suppliers but upgrade/move to new products’ approach. 

16.3 The ‘minimal change’ approach does not involve any new procurement 
exercise, rather it involves continuing with the current products and service 
levels and renegotiating the contracts as and when they expire. For the 
reasons set out at para 16.3.5 it is likely that this option would require the 
council to enter into new contracts with values above the regulatory 
threshold and requiring full procurement. 

16.4 The ‘No new suppliers but upgrade/move to new products’ approach would 
also involve renegotiating new contracts. The new contracts could be 
compliant with the regulations if they meet the criteria of Regulation 32 (see 
para 8.1 above) however the criteria is strict and inappropriate use of the 
regulation would provide a further ground for legal challenge. 

Page 19



17 Options Considered

17.1 The preferred option as in the Proposal is detailed in Section 3, to go to 
market to identify the best solution(s).  Three other options were considered 
and were discounted due to legality, value for money and the Council’s 
continual drive to both improve systems and loser costs, they are outlined 
below.

17.2 Option 1 Do nothing is not an option as new contracts will need to be put in 
place.

17.3 Option 2 Minimal Change Approach - Stay with existing suppliers; continue 
with the current systems using existing resources and support.  When we 
have an expiry date or renewal date for support and maintenance, negotiate 
with the suppliers to try to avoid price risks such as inflationary increases etc 
without any formal procurement/tendering process. 
This option is not recommended for the following reasons:

 Significant changes in current products will force us to re-procure
 If we do not re-procure we lose commercial leverage with current 

suppliers
 Alternative and better solutions are available now, we lose an 

opportunity to improve 
 Legal advice indicates this is a high risk option as extending current 

solutions without a procurement risks challenge.

17.4 Option 3 No new suppliers but upgrade/move to new products - This option 
would seek to take advantage of, for example, CACI’s and OLM’s new 
upgrade products (Childview and Eclipse) which are in development ie do 
not exist yet, posing a risk they may not be fit for purpose. This option is not 
recommended for the same reasons as shown for option 2.

18 Conclusions

18.1 The case management systems within Children’s Services serve a complex 
set of worker and manager needs within the council. They are also the tool to 
enable significant central government data returns and key allocations to be 
made. They could, through portal arrangements, serve integrated and 
partnership working too. They are vital to support front line services and 
provide both operational and strategic oversight.

18.2 Sometimes prolonged relationships with suppliers can lead to a loss of 
intelligent client capability, mutual complacency and lack of challenge, 
unclear agreements, unreasonable cost increase for updates, a lack of 
product innovation and worsening customer responsiveness and service 
levels.

18.3 Due to the economic climate, the way forward with this project has to be 
dictated by the balance of resource availability and our appetite for risk of 
change against the benefits of implementing new solutions and relationships 
with new suppliers.  Therefore, it is likely that the planned approach will need 
to be adjusted as the project progresses through the governance stages.

Page 20



18.4 The preferred option is the only option to both fulfil procurement 
requirements and allow exploration of the market to find the best systems to 
satisfy business needs.

Appendix A Capital Funding bid
Appendix B Procurement Process
Appendix C Finance spreadsheet

Barry Pirie
Associate Director, People and Business

Report Author:  Paul Broadstock, Acting Head of Service ICT Frontline Services

11/07/2016

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 23

Agenda Item 9
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 29

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 31

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the previous meeting
	Minutes

	6 ICT Capital Funding Bid
	9 ICT Capital Fund (Part ii)
	Enc. 2 for ICT Capital Funding Bid
	Enc. 3 for ICT Capital Funding Bid


